



State of Wisconsin
2007 - 2008 LEGISLATURE

LRB-1261/3
GMM&PJK:wlj:rs

4

stays

rm is run

DOA:.....Rhodes, BB0258 - Creation of Department of Children and Families

FOR 2007-09 BUDGET -- NOT READY FOR INTRODUCTION

D-note

don't you cut

1 AN ACT ...; relating to: the budget.

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

CHILDREN

Under current law, DHFS provides or oversees county provision of various services to children and families. Those services include services for children in need of protection or services and their families; adoption services for children whose parents' parental rights have been terminated; licensing of child welfare agencies, foster homes, group homes, day care centers, and shelter care facilities; conducting background investigations of caregivers of children; investigating cases of suspected child abuse or neglect; providing a state supplemental food program for women, infants, and children; and distributing funding for children's community programs, child abuse and neglect prevention programs, services for children and families, food distribution programs, domestic abuse services, tribal adolescent services, community action programs to assist poor persons, and a brighter futures initiative to prevent delinquent behavior, alcohol and other other abuse, child abuse and neglect, and nonmarital pregnancy. This bill creates the Department of Children and Families (DCF) and transfers from DHFS to DCF the duty to provide or oversee the provision of those services. The bill also renames DHFS as the Department of Health Services.

Under current law, DWD administers the Wisconsin Works program, which provides work experience and benefits for low-income custodial parents; job search assistance to noncustodial parents who are required to pay child support, to minor custodial parents, and to pregnant women who are not custodial parents; and child care subsidies for eligible parents who need child care services to participate in various educational or work activities. DWD also administers the program for child and spousal support establishment and enforcement and paternity and medical support liability establishment. This bill transfers from DWD to DCF, created in the bill, the responsibility for administering those programs.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

1 **SECTION 1.** 6.47 (1) (ag) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 6.47 (1) (ag) "Domestic abuse victim service provider" means an organization
3 that is certified by the department of ~~health and family services~~ children and families
4 as eligible to receive grants under s. ~~46.95~~ 49.165 (2) and whose name is included on
5 the list provided by the board under s. 7.08 (10).

6 **SECTION 2.** 7.08 (10) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 7.08 (10) DOMESTIC ABUSE AND SEXUAL ASSAULT SERVICE PROVIDERS. Provide to
8 each municipal clerk, on a continuous basis, the names and addresses of
9 organizations that are certified under s. ~~46.95~~ 49.165 (4) or 165.93 (4) to provide
10 services to victims of domestic abuse or sexual assault.

11 **SECTION 3.** 13.101 (6) (a) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act
12 (this act), is amended to read:

13 13.101 (6) (a) As an emergency measure necessitated by decreased state
14 revenues and to prevent the necessity for a state tax on general property, the
15 committee may reduce any appropriation made to any board, commission,
16 department, or the University of Wisconsin System, or to any other state agency or
17 activity, by such amount as it deems feasible, not exceeding 25% of the

1 appropriations, except appropriations made by ss. 20.255 (2) (ac), (bc), (bh), (cg), and
2 (vr), 20.395 (1), (2) (cq), (eq) to (ex) and (gq) to (gx), (3), (4) (aq) to (ax), and (6) (af),
3 (aq), (ar), and (au), 20.435 (6) (a) and (7) (da), and ~~20.445 (3)~~ 20.437 (2) (a) and (dz)
4 or for forestry purposes under s. 20.370 (1), or any other moneys distributed to any
5 county, city, village, town, or school district. Appropriations of receipts and of a sum
6 sufficient shall for the purposes of this section be regarded as equivalent to the
7 amounts expended under such appropriations in the prior fiscal year which ended
8 June 30. All functions of said state agencies shall be continued in an efficient
9 manner, but because of the uncertainties of the existing situation no public funds
10 should be expended or obligations incurred unless there shall be adequate revenues
11 to meet the expenditures therefor. For such reason the committee may make
12 reductions of such appropriations as in its judgment will secure sound financial
13 operations of the administration for said state agencies and at the same time
14 interfere least with their services and activities.

****NOTE: This is reconciled s. 13.101 (6) (a). This SECTION has been affected by
drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1501 and -1261.

15 **SECTION 4.** 13.63 (1) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 13.63 (1) (am) If an individual who applies for a license under this section does
17 not have a social security number, the individual, as a condition of obtaining that
18 license, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the
19 board that the individual does not have a social security number. The form of the
20 statement shall be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children
21 and families. A license issued in reliance upon a false statement submitted under
22 this paragraph is invalid.

23 **SECTION 5.** 13.63 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 13.63 (1) (b) Except as provided under par. (am), the board shall not issue a
2 license to an applicant who does not provide his or her social security number. The
3 board shall not issue a license to an applicant or shall revoke any license issued to
4 a lobbyist if the department of revenue certifies to the board that the applicant or
5 lobbyist is liable for delinquent taxes under s. 73.0301. The board shall refuse to
6 issue a license or shall suspend any existing license for failure of an applicant or
7 licensee to pay court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance,
8 birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child
9 or former spouse or failure of an applicant or licensee to comply, after appropriate
10 notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce~~
11 development children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53
12 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings, as provided in a
13 memorandum of understanding entered into under s. 49.857. No application may
14 be disapproved by the board except an application for a license by a person who is
15 ineligible for licensure under this subsection or s. 13.69 (4) or an application by a
16 lobbyist whose license has been revoked under this subsection or s. 13.69 (7) and only
17 for the period of such ineligibility or revocation.

18 **SECTION 6.** 13.64 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 13.64 (2) The registration shall expire on December 31 of each even-numbered
20 year. Except as provided in sub. (2m), the board shall refuse to accept a registration
21 statement filed by an individual who does not provide his or her social security
22 number. The board shall refuse to accept a registration statement filed by an
23 individual or shall suspend any existing registration of an individual for failure of
24 the individual or registrant to pay court-ordered payments of child or family
25 support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related

1 to the support of a child or former spouse or failure of the individual or registrant to
2 comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the
3 department of workforce development children and families or a county child
4 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
5 proceeding, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.
6 49.857. If all lobbying by or on behalf of the principal which is not exempt under s.
7 13.621 ceases, the board shall terminate the principal's registration and any
8 authorizations under s. 13.65 as of the day after the principal files a statement of
9 cessation and expense statements under s. 13.68 for the period covering all dates on
10 which the principal was registered. Refusal to accept a registration statement or
11 suspension of an existing registration pursuant to a memorandum of understanding
12 under s. 49.857 is not subject to review under ch. 227.

13 **SECTION 7.** 13.64 (2m) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 13.64 (2m) If an individual who applies for registration under this section does
15 not have a social security number, the individual, as a condition of obtaining
16 registration, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation
17 to the board that the individual does not have a social security number. The form of
18 the statement shall be prescribed by the department of workforce development
19 children and families. A registration accepted in reliance upon a false statement
20 submitted under this subsection is invalid.

21 **SECTION 8.** 13.83 (3) (f) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 13.83 (3) (f) (intro.) The special committee shall be assisted by a technical
23 advisory committee composed of ~~7~~ 8 members representing the following:

24 **SECTION 9.** 13.83 (3) (f) 2m. of the statutes is created to read:

25 13.83 (3) (f) 2m. The department of children and families.

1 **SECTION 10.** 13.83 (4) (a) 9. of the statutes is repealed.

2 **SECTION 11.** 14.18 of the statutes is amended to read:

3 **14.18 Assistance from department of workforce development children**
4 **and families.** The governor may enter into a cooperative arrangement with the
5 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families under which the
6 department assists the governor in providing temporary assistance for needy
7 families under 42 USC 601 et. seq.

8 **SECTION 12.** 15.155 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 **15.155 (5) SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD.** There is created a small
10 business regulatory review board, attached to the department of commerce under s.
11 15.03. The board shall consist of a representative of the department of
12 administration; a representative of the department of agriculture, trade and
13 consumer protection; a representative of the department of children and families; a
14 representative of the department of commerce; a representative of the department
15 of health and family services; a representative of the department of natural
16 resources; a representative of the department of regulation and licensing; a
17 representative of the department of revenue; a representative of the department of
18 workforce development; 6 representatives of small businesses, as defined in s.
19 227.114 (1), who shall be appointed for 3-year terms; and the chairpersons of one
20 senate and one assembly committee concerned with small businesses, appointed as
21 are members of standing committees. The representatives of the departments shall
22 be selected by the secretary of that department.

23 **SECTION 13.** 15.195 (4) (intro.) of the statutes is renumbered 15.205 (4) (intro.)
24 and amended to read:

1 15.205 (4) CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT PREVENTION BOARD. (intro.) There is
2 created a child abuse and neglect prevention board which is attached to the
3 department of ~~health and family services~~ children and families under s. 15.03. The
4 board shall consist of 20 members as follows:

5 **SECTION 14.** 15.195 (4) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 15.205 (4) (a).

6 **SECTION 15.** 15.195 (4) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 15.205 (4) (b).

7 **SECTION 16.** 15.195 (4) (c) of the statutes is renumbered 15.205 (4) (c).

8 **SECTION 17.** 15.195 (4) (d) of the statutes is renumbered 15.205 (4) (d).

9 **SECTION 18.** 15.195 (4) (dg) of the statutes is renumbered 15.205 (4) (dg).

10 **SECTION 19.** 15.195 (4) (dr) of the statutes is renumbered 15.205 (4) (dr) and
11 amended to read:

12 15.205 (4) (dr) The secretary of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
13 or his or her designee.

14 **SECTION 20.** 15.195 (4) (e) of the statutes is renumbered 15.205 (4) (e).

15 **SECTION 21.** 15.195 (4) (em) of the statutes is renumbered 15.205 (4) (em).

16 **SECTION 22.** 15.195 (4) (f) of the statutes is renumbered 15.205 (4) (f).

17 **SECTION 23.** 15.195 (4) (fm) of the statutes is renumbered 15.205 (4) (fm).

18 **SECTION 24.** 15.195 (4) (g) of the statutes is renumbered 15.205 (4) (g).

19 **SECTION 25.** 15.197 (16) of the statutes is renumbered 15.207 (16) and amended
20 to read:

21 15.207 (16) COUNCIL ON DOMESTIC ABUSE. There is created in the department
22 of ~~health and family services~~ children and families a council on domestic abuse. The
23 council shall consist of 13 members appointed for staggered 3-year terms. Of those
24 13 members, 9 shall be nominated by the governor and appointed with the advice and
25 consent of the senate, and one each shall be designated by the speaker of the

1 assembly, the senate majority leader and the minority leader in each house of the
2 legislature and appointed by the governor. Persons appointed shall have a
3 recognized interest in and knowledge of the problems and treatment of victims of
4 domestic abuse.

5 **SECTION 26.** 15.197 (24) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is renumbered 15.207 (24)
6 (a) (intro.) and amended to read:

7 15.207 (24) (a) (intro.) There is created a Milwaukee child welfare partnership
8 council, attached to the department of ~~health and family services~~ children and
9 families under s. 15.03. The council shall consist of the following members:

10 **SECTION 27.** 15.197 (24) (a) 1. of the statutes is renumbered 15.207 (24) (a) 1.

11 **SECTION 28.** 15.197 (24) (a) 2. of the statutes is renumbered 15.207 (24) (a) 2.

12 **SECTION 29.** 15.197 (24) (a) 3. of the statutes is renumbered 15.207 (24) (a) 3.

13 **SECTION 30.** 15.197 (24) (a) 4. of the statutes is renumbered 15.207 (24) (a) 4.

14 **SECTION 31.** 15.197 (24) (a) 5. of the statutes is renumbered 15.207 (24) (a) 5.

15 **SECTION 32.** 15.197 (24) (a) 6. of the statutes is renumbered 15.207 (24) (a) 6.

16 **SECTION 33.** 15.197 (24) (a) 7. of the statutes is renumbered 15.207 (24) (a) 7.

17 **SECTION 34.** 15.197 (24) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 15.207 (24) (b).

18 **SECTION 35.** 15.197 (24) (c) of the statutes is renumbered 15.207 (24) (c).

19 **SECTION 36.** 15.197 (24) (d) of the statutes is renumbered 15.207 (24) (d) and
20 amended to read:

21 15.207 (24) (d) If the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
22 families establishes more than one geographical area in Milwaukee County under
23 s. 49.143 (6), the children's services networks established in Milwaukee County
24 under s. 49.143 (2) (b), in nominating members under par. (a) 7., shall nominate
25 residents of different geographical areas established under s. 49.143 (6) and, when

1 the term of a member appointed under par. (a) 7. ends or if a vacancy occurs in the
2 membership of the council under par. (a) 7., those children's services networks shall
3 nominate a resident of a different geographical area established under s. 49.143 (6)
4 from the geographical area of the member who is being replaced according to a
5 rotating order of succession determined by the children's services networks.

6 **SECTION 37.** 15.20 of the statutes is created to read:

7 **15.20 Department of children and families; creation.** There is created a
8 department of children and families under the direction and supervision of the
9 secretary of children and families.

10 **SECTION 38.** 15.205 (title) of the statutes is created to read:

11 **15.205 (title) Same; attached boards.**

12 **SECTION 39.** 15.207 (title) of the statutes is created to read:

13 **15.207 (title) Same; councils.**

14 **SECTION 40.** 16.54 (12) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 16.54 (12) (b) The Except as provided under 2007 Wisconsin Act (this act),
16 section 9155 (1m), the department of workforce development children and families
17 may not expend or encumber any moneys received under s. 20.445 credited to the
18 appropriation account under s. 20.437 (2) (mm) or (3) (mm) unless the department
19 of workforce development children and families submits a plan for the expenditure
20 of the moneys to the department of administration and the department of
21 administration approves the plan.

***NOTE: This is reconciled s. 16.54 (12) (b). This SECTION has been affected by
drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1221 and -1261.

22 **SECTION 41.** 16.54 (12) (d) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act
23 (this act), is amended to read:

1 16.54 (12) (d) At the end of each fiscal year, the department of administration
2 shall determine the amount of moneys that remain in the appropriation accounts
3 under ss. 20.435 (8) (mm) and ~~20.445~~ 20.437 (2) (mm) and (3) (mm) that have not been
4 encumbered or expended under 2007 Wisconsin Act (this act), section 9121 (1) or
5 9155 (1m), or approved for encumbrance or expenditure by the department pursuant
6 to a plan submitted under par. (a) or (b) and shall require that such moneys be lapsed
7 to the general fund. The department shall notify the cochairpersons of the joint
8 committee on finance, in writing, of the department's action under this paragraph.

****NOTE: This is reconciled s. 16.54 (12) (d). This SECTION has been affected by
drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1221 and -1261.

9 **SECTION 42.** 16.75 (6) (bm) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 16.75 (6) (bm) If the secretary determines that it is in the best interest of this
11 state to do so, he or she may waive any requirement under subs. (1) to (5) and ss.
12 16.705 and 16.72 (2) (e) and (f) and (5) with respect to any contract entered into by
13 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families under s. 49.143, if
14 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families presents the
15 secretary with a process for the procurement of contracts under s. 49.143 and the
16 secretary approves the process.

17 **SECTION 43.** 16.957 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 16.957 (3) (a) The department shall, on the basis of competitive bids, contract
19 with community action agencies described in s. ~~46.30~~ 49.265 (2) (a) 1., nonstock,
20 nonprofit corporations organized under ch. 181, or local units of government to
21 provide services under the programs established under sub. (2) (a).

22 **SECTION 44.** 16.964 (12) (c) 10. of the statutes is amended to read:

1 16.964 (12) (c) 10. The program is developed with input from, and implemented
2 in collaboration with, one or more circuit court judges, the district attorney, the state
3 public defender, local law enforcement officials, county agencies responsible for
4 providing social services, including services relating to alcohol and other drug
5 addiction, child welfare, mental health, and the Wisconsin Works program, the
6 departments of corrections, children and families, and health and family services,
7 private social services agencies, and substance abuse treatment providers.

8 **SECTION 45.** 16.964 (12) (e) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

9 16.964 (12) (e) 1. A county that receives a grant under this subsection shall
10 create an oversight committee to advise the county in administering and evaluating
11 its program. Each committee shall consist of a circuit court judge, the district
12 attorney or his or her designee, the state public defender or his or her designee, a local
13 law enforcement official, a representative of the county, a representative of each
14 other county agency responsible for providing social services, including services
15 relating to child welfare, mental health, and the Wisconsin Works program,
16 representatives of the departments of corrections, children and families, and health
17 and family services, a representative from private social services agencies, a
18 representative of substance abuse treatment providers, and other members to be
19 determined by the county.

20 **SECTION 46.** 16.964 (14) (a) of the statutes, as created by 2007 Wisconsin Act
21 (this act), is amended to read:

22 16.964 (14) (a) Serving as guardian ad litem for cases with the bureau of
23 Milwaukee child welfare of the department of health and family services children
24 and families.

***NOTE: This is reconciled s. 16.964 (14) (a). This SECTION has been affected by drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1261 and -1671.

1 **SECTION 47.** 19.55 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 19.55 (2) (b) Records obtained or prepared by the board in connection with an
3 investigation, except that the board shall permit inspection of records that are made
4 public in the course of a hearing by the board to determine if a violation of this
5 subchapter or subch. III of ch. 13 has occurred. Whenever the board refers such
6 investigation and hearing records to a district attorney or to the attorney general,
7 they may be made public in the course of a prosecution initiated under this
8 subchapter. The board shall also provide information from investigation and hearing
9 records that pertains to the location of individuals and assets of individuals as
10 requested under s. 49.22 (2m) by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children
11 and families or by a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5).

12 **SECTION 48.** 19.55 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 19.55 (2) (d) Records of the social security number of any individual who files
14 an application for licensure as a lobbyist under s. 13.63 or who registers as a principal
15 under s. 13.64, except to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
16 families for purposes of administration of s. 49.22 or to the department of revenue
17 for purposes of administration of s. 73.0301.

18 **SECTION 49.** 20.001 (2) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 20.001 (2) (e) *Federal revenues.* "Federal revenues" consist of moneys received
20 from the federal government, except that under s. ~~20.445 (3)~~ 20.437 (2) (md) "federal
21 revenues" also include moneys treated as refunds of expenditures, and under s.
22 ~~20.445 (3)~~ 20.437 (2) (me) "federal revenues" consist only of moneys treated as
23 received from the federal government. Federal revenues may be deposited as

1 program revenues in the general fund or as segregated revenues in a segregated
2 fund. In either case they are indicated in s. 20.005 by the addition of “-F” after the
3 abbreviation assigned under pars. (b) and (d).

4 **SECTION 50.** 20.001 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 20.001 (5) REFUNDS OF EXPENDITURES. Any amount not otherwise appropriated
6 under this chapter that is received by a state agency as a result of an adjustment
7 made to a previously recorded expenditure from a sum certain appropriation to that
8 agency due to activities that are of a temporary nature or activities that could not be
9 anticipated during budget development and which serves to reduce or eliminate the
10 previously recorded expenditure in the same fiscal year in which the previously
11 recorded expenditure was made, except as provided in s. 20.445 (3) 20.437 (2) (md),
12 may, upon request of the agency, be designated by the secretary of administration as
13 a refund of an expenditure. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, the
14 secretary of administration may designate an amount received by a state agency as
15 a refund of an expenditure only if the agency submits to the secretary a written
16 explanation of the circumstances under which the amount was received that
17 includes a specific reference in a statutory or nonstatutory law to a function of the
18 agency under which the amount was received and the appropriation from which the
19 previously recorded expenditure was made. A refund of an expenditure shall be
20 deposited by the receiving state agency in the appropriation account from which the
21 previously recorded expenditure was made. Except as otherwise provided in this
22 subsection, a state agency which proposes to make an expenditure from moneys
23 designated as a refund of an expenditure shall submit to the secretary of
24 administration a written explanation of the purpose of the expenditure, including a
25 specific reference in a statutory or nonstatutory law to a function of the agency under

1 which the expenditure is to be made and the appropriation from which the
2 expenditure is to be made. After submission and approval of an estimate of the
3 amount proposed to be expended under s. 16.50 (2), a state agency may expend the
4 moneys received from the refund of the expenditure. The secretary of administration
5 may waive submission of any explanation required by this subsection for categories
6 of refunds of expenditures or proposed refunds of expenditures.

7 **SECTION 51.** 20.410 (3) (ko) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 20.410 (3) (ko) *Interagency programs; community youth and family aids.* All
9 moneys transferred from the appropriation account under s. ~~20.435 (3)~~ 20.437 (1)
10 (nL) for the purposes of s. 301.26, to be used for those purposes.

11 **SECTION 52.** 20.435 (1) (ac) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (ac) and
12 amended to read:

13 20.437 (2) (ac) *Child abuse and neglect prevention technical assistance.* The
14 amounts in the schedule for child abuse and neglect prevention technical assistance
15 and training under s. ~~46.515~~ 48.983 (8).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

16 **SECTION 53.** 20.435 (1) (gm) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act
17 (this act), is repealed and recreated to read:

18 20.435 (1) (gm) *Licensing, review and certifying activities; fees; supplies and*
19 *services.* The amounts in the schedule for the purposes specified in ss. 146.50 (8),
20 252.23, 252.24, 252.245, 254.176, 254.178, 254.179, 254.20 (5) and (8), 254.31 to
21 254.39, 254.41, 254.47, 254.61 to 254.88, and 255.08 (2) and ch. 69, for the purchase
22 and distribution of medical supplies, for transfer to the appropriation accounts under
23 ss. 20.437 (2) (kb) and 20.445 (1) (kb), and to analyze and provide data under s.

1 250.04. All moneys received under ss. 69.22 (3m), 146.50 (5) (f) and (8) (d), 250.04
2 (3m), 252.23 (4) (a), 252.24 (4) (a), 252.245 (9), 254.176, 254.178, 254.181, 254.20 (5)
3 and (8), 254.31 to 254.39, 254.41, 254.47, 254.61 to 254.88, and 255.08 (2) (b) and ch.
4 69, other than s. 69.22 (1m), and as reimbursement for medical supplies shall be
5 credited to this appropriation account. The department shall, in each fiscal year,
6 transfer \$1,250,000 from this appropriation account to the appropriation account
7 under s. 20.437 (1) (ky) and shall transfer \$500,000 from this appropriation account
8 to the appropriation account under s. 20.437 (1) (kz).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

****NOTE: This is reconciled s. 20.435 (1) (gm). This SECTION has been affected by drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1508, -1621, and -1676.

9 **SECTION 54.** 20.435 (1) (gr) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (gr) and
10 amended to read:

11 20.437 (2) (gr) *Supplemental food program for women, infants, and children*
12 *administration.* All moneys received from the supplemental food enforcement
13 surcharges on fines, forfeitures, and recoupments that are levied by a court under
14 s. ~~253.06~~ 49.17 (4) (c) and on forfeitures and recoupments that are levied by the
15 department under s. ~~253.06~~ 49.17 (5) (c) to finance fraud reduction in the
16 supplemental food program for women, infants, and children under s. ~~253.06~~ 49.17.

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

17 **SECTION 55.** 20.435 (3) (title) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (title).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

18 **SECTION 56.** 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (a) and
19 amended to read:

1 20.437 (1) (a) *General program operations*. The amounts in the schedule for
2 general program operations relating to children's services for children and families,
3 including field services and administrative services.

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

4 **SECTION 57.** 20.435 (3) (bc) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (bc) and
5 amended to read:

6 20.437 (1) (bc) *Grants for children's community programs*. The amounts in the
7 schedule for grants for children's community programs under s. ~~46.481~~ 48.481.
8 Notwithstanding ss. 20.001 (3) (a) and 20.002 (1), the department may transfer funds
9 between fiscal years under this paragraph. All moneys under this appropriation
10 account that are distributed under s. ~~46.481~~ 48.481 but are not encumbered by
11 December 31 of each year lapse to the general fund on the next January 1 unless
12 carried forward to the next calendar year by the joint committee on finance.

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

13 **SECTION 58.** 20.435 (3) (cd) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (cd) and
14 amended to read:

15 20.437 (1) (cd) *Domestic abuse grants*. The amounts in the schedule for the
16 purposes of s. ~~46.95~~ 49.165. Notwithstanding ss. 20.001 (3) (a) and 20.002 (1), the
17 department may transfer funds between fiscal years under this paragraph. All funds
18 allocated by the department under s. ~~46.95~~ 49.165 (2) but not encumbered by
19 December 31 of each year lapse to the general fund on the next January 1 unless
20 transferred to the next calendar year by the joint committee on finance.

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

21 **SECTION 59.** 20.435 (3) (cf) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (cf).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

1 **SECTION 60.** 20.435 (3) (cw) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (cw).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

2 **SECTION 61.** 20.435 (3) (cx) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (cx).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

3 **SECTION 62.** 20.435 (3) (da) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (da).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

4 **SECTION 63.** 20.435 (3) (dd) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (dd).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

5 **SECTION 64.** 20.435 (3) (dg) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (dg).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

6 **SECTION 65.** 20.435 (3) (eg) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (eg) and

7 amended to read:

8 20.437 (1) (eg) *Brighter futures initiative and tribal adolescent services.* The
9 amounts in the schedule for the brighter futures initiative under s. ~~46.99~~ 48.545 and
10 for tribal adolescent services under s. ~~46.995~~ 48.487.

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

11 **SECTION 66.** 20.435 (3) (f) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (f) and

12 amended to read:

13 20.437 (1) (f) *Second-chance homes.* The amounts in the schedule for grants
14 for 2nd-chance homes under s. ~~46.997~~ 48.647 (2) (a) and for an evaluation of that
15 grant program under s. ~~46.997~~ 48.647 (4). Notwithstanding s. 20.001 (3) (a) and
16 20.002 (1), the department of children and families shall transfer from this
17 appropriation account to the appropriation account ~~for the department of workforce~~

1 ~~development under s. 20.445 (3) under sub. (2) (dz)~~ all funds allocated under s. 46.997
2 48.647 (2) (a) and (4) but unexpended by June 30 of each year.

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

3 **SECTION 67.** 20.435 (3) (fp) of the statutes is repealed.

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

4 **SECTION 68.** 20.435 (3) (gx) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (gx).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

5 **SECTION 69.** 20.435 (3) (hh) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (hh) and
6 amended to read:

7 20.437 (1) (hh) *Domestic abuse surcharge grants.* All moneys received from the
8 domestic abuse surcharge on court fines, as authorized under s. 971.37 (1m) (c) 1. or
9 973.055, to provide grants to domestic abuse services organizations under s. 46.95
10 49.165.

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

11 **SECTION 70.** 20.435 (3) (i) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (i).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

12 **SECTION 71.** 20.435 (3) (j) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (j) and
13 amended to read:

14 20.437 (1) (j) *Statewide automated child welfare information system receipts.*
15 All moneys received from counties under s. 46.45 48.565 (2) (a), for the costs of
16 implementing and operating the statewide automated child welfare information
17 system established under s. 46.03 48.47 (7g).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

18 **SECTION 72.** 20.435 (3) (jb) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (jb).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

1 **SECTION 73.** 20.435 (3) (jj) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (jj).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

2 **SECTION 74.** 20.435 (3) (jm) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (jm).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

3 **SECTION 75.** 20.435 (3) (kc) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (kc) and
4 amended to read:

5 20.437 (1) (kc) *Interagency and intra-agency aids; kinship care and long-term*
6 *kinship care.* The amounts in the schedule for payments under s. 48.57 (3m) and (3n).
7 All moneys transferred from the appropriation account under s. ~~20.445 (3) sub. (2)~~
8 (md) to this appropriation account shall be credited to this appropriation account.
9 Notwithstanding s. 20.001 (3) (a), the unencumbered balance on June 30 of each year
10 is transferred to the appropriation account under s. ~~20.445 (3) sub. (2)~~ (kx).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

11 **SECTION 76.** 20.435 (3) (kd) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (kd) and
12 amended to read:

13 20.437 (1) (kd) *Kinship care and long-term kinship care assessments.* The
14 amounts in the schedule for assessments of kinship care relatives, as defined in s.
15 48.57 (3m) (a) 2., and long-term kinship care relatives, as defined in s. 48.57 (3n) (a)
16 2., who provide care and maintenance for children to determine if those kinship care
17 relatives and long-term kinship care relatives are eligible to receive payments under
18 s. 48.57 (3m) or (3n). All moneys transferred from the appropriation account under
19 s. ~~20.445 (3) sub. (2)~~ (md) to this appropriation account shall be credited to this
20 appropriation account. Notwithstanding s. 20.001 (3) (a), the unencumbered

1 balance on June 30 of each year is transferred to the appropriation account under s.
2 ~~20.445 (3)~~ sub. (2) (kx).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

3 **SECTION 77.** 20.435 (3) (kw) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (kw).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

4 **SECTION 78.** 20.435 (3) (kx) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (kx).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

5 **SECTION 79.** 20.435 (3) (ky) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act
6 (this act), is renumbered 20.437 (1) (ky) and amended to read:

7 20.437 (1) (ky) *Interagency and intra-agency aids.* Except as provided in par.
8 (kw), all moneys received from other state agencies and all moneys received by the
9 department from the department for local assistance, including all moneys
10 transferred from ~~sub. s. 20.435~~ (1) (gm) and credited to this appropriation account,
11 for local assistance.

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

***NOTE: This is reconciled s. 20.435 (3) (ky). This SECTION has been affected by drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1508/2 and -1261/2.

12 **SECTION 80.** 20.435 (3) (kz) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act
13 (this act), is renumbered 20.437 (1) (kz) and amended to read:

14 20.437 (1) (kz) *Interagency and intra-agency local assistance.* Except as
15 provided in par. (kw), all moneys received from other state agencies and all moneys
16 received by the department from the department for local assistance, including all
17 moneys transferred from ~~sub. s. 20.435~~ (1) (gm) and credited to this appropriation
18 account, for local assistance.

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

***NOTE: This is reconciled s. 20.435 (3) (kz). This SECTION has been affected by drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1508 and -1261.

1 **SECTION 81.** 20.435 (3) (m) of the statutes is repealed.

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

2 **SECTION 82.** 20.435 (3) (ma) of the statutes is repealed.

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

3 **SECTION 83.** 20.435 (3) (mb) of the statutes is repealed.

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

4 **SECTION 84.** 20.435 (3) (mc) of the statutes is repealed.

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

5 **SECTION 85.** 20.435 (3) (md) of the statutes is repealed.

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

6 **SECTION 86.** 20.435 (3) (me) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (me) and
7 amended to read:

8 20.437 (1) (me) *Federal block grant local assistance.* All block grant moneys
9 received from the federal government, as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54,
10 for ~~youth services~~ local assistance for children and families, for the purposes for
11 which received.

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

12 **SECTION 87.** 20.435 (3) (mw) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (mw).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

13 **SECTION 88.** 20.435 (3) (mx) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (mx).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

14 **SECTION 89.** 20.435 (3) (n) of the statutes is repealed.

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

1 **SECTION 90.** 20.435 (3) (na) of the statutes is repealed.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

2 **SECTION 91.** 20.435 (3) (nL) of the statutes is repealed.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

3 **SECTION 92.** 20.435 (3) (pd) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (pd) and
4 amended to read:

5 20.437 (1) (pd) *Federal aid; state foster care and adoption services.* All federal
6 moneys received for meeting the costs of providing foster care, treatment foster care,
7 institutional child care, and subsidized adoptions under ss. 48.48 (12) and 48.52, the
8 cost of care for children under s. 49.19 (10) (d), the cost of providing, or contracting
9 with private adoption agencies to assist the department in providing, services to
10 children with special needs who are under the guardianship of the department to
11 prepare those children for adoption, and the cost of providing postadoption services
12 to children with special needs who have been adopted. Disbursements for foster care
13 under s. ~~46.03 (20)~~ 49.32 (2) and for the purposes described under s. 48.627 may be
14 made from this appropriation.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

15 **SECTION 93.** 20.435 (3) (pm) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (1) (pm).

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

16 **SECTION 94.** 20.435 (5) (ab) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (ab) and
17 amended to read:

18 20.437 (2) (ab) *Child abuse and neglect prevention grants.* The amounts in the
19 schedule for child abuse and neglect prevention grants under s. ~~46.515~~ 48.983.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

1 **SECTION 95.** 20.435 (5) (dn) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (dn) and
2 amended to read:

3 20.437 (2) (dn) *Food distribution grants.* The amounts in the schedule for
4 grants for food distribution programs under ss. ~~46.75 and 46.77~~ 49.171 and 49.1715.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

5 **SECTION 96.** 20.435 (5) (em) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (em) and
6 amended to read:

7 20.437 (2) (em) *Supplemental food program for women, infants and children*
8 *benefits.* As a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule to provide a
9 state supplement under s. ~~253.06~~ 49.17 to the federal special supplemental food
10 program for women, infants, and children authorized under 42 USC 1786.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

11 **SECTION 97.** 20.435 (7) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 20.435 (7) (b) *Community aids and Medical Assistance payments.* The
13 amounts in the schedule for human services under s. 46.40, to fund services provided
14 by resource centers under s. 46.283 (5), for services under the family care benefit
15 under s. 46.284 (5), ~~for reimbursement to counties having a population of less than~~
16 ~~500,000 for the cost of court attached intake services under s. 48.06 (4), for shelter~~
17 ~~care under ss. 48.58 and 938.22, for foster care, treatment foster care, and subsidized~~
18 ~~guardianship care under ss. 46.261 and 49.19 (10), for Medical Assistance payment~~
19 adjustments under s. 49.45 (52), and for Medical Assistance payments under s. 49.45
20 (6tw) and (53). Social services disbursements under s. 46.03 (20) (b) may be made
21 from this appropriation. Refunds received relating to payments made under s. 46.03
22 (20) (b) for the provision of services for which moneys are appropriated under this

1 paragraph shall be returned to this appropriation. Notwithstanding ss. 20.001 (3)
2 (a) and 20.002 (1), the department of health and family services may transfer funds
3 between fiscal years under this paragraph. The department shall deposit into this
4 appropriation funds it recovers under ss. 46.495 (2) (b) and 51.423 (15), from prior
5 year audit adjustments including those resulting from audits of services under s.
6 46.26, 1993 stats., or s. 46.27. Except for amounts authorized to be carried forward
7 under s. 46.45, all funds recovered under ss. 46.495 (2) (b) and 51.423 (15) and all
8 funds allocated under s. 46.40 and not spent or encumbered by December 31 of each
9 year shall lapse to the general fund on the succeeding January 1 unless carried
10 forward to the next calendar year by the joint committee on finance.

11 **SECTION 98.** 20.435 (7) (bc) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 20.435 (7) (bc) *Grants for community programs.* The amounts in the schedule
13 for grants for community programs under s. 46.48. Notwithstanding ss. 20.001 (3)
14 (a) and 20.002 (1), the department may transfer funds between fiscal years under
15 this paragraph. Notwithstanding ss. 20.001 (3) (b) and 20.002 (1), the department
16 of health and family services may credit or deposit into this appropriation funds for
17 the purpose specified in s. 46.48 (13) that the department transfers from the
18 appropriation under par. (bL) that are allocated by the department under that
19 appropriation but unexpended or unencumbered on June 30 of each year. Except for
20 amounts authorized to be carried forward under s. 46.48 and as otherwise provided
21 in this paragraph, all funds allocated but not encumbered by December 31 of each
22 year lapse to the general fund on the next January 1 unless carried forward to the
23 next calendar year by the joint committee on finance. Notwithstanding ss. 20.001
24 (3) (a) and 20.002 (1), the department shall transfer from this appropriation account
25 to the appropriation account for the department of ~~workforce development~~ children

1 and families under s. ~~20.445 (3)~~ 20.437 (2) (dz) funds allocated by the department
2 under s. 46.48 (30) but unexpended on June 30 of each year.

3 **SECTION 99.** 20.435 (7) (o) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 20.435 (7) (o) *Federal aid; community aids.* All federal moneys received in
5 amounts pursuant to allocation plans developed by the department for the provision
6 or purchase of services authorized under par. (b); ~~all federal moneys received as child~~
7 ~~welfare funds under 42 USC 620 to 626 as limited under s. 48.985;~~ all federal
8 temporary assistance for needy families moneys received under 42 USC 601 to 619
9 that are authorized to be used to purchase or provide social services under 42 USC
10 1397 to 1397e; all unanticipated federal social services block grant funds received
11 under 42 USC 1397 to 1397e, in accordance with s. 46.49 (2); and all federal moneys
12 received under 42 USC 1396 to 1396v in reimbursement of the cost of preventing
13 out-of-home placements of children, for distribution under s. 46.40. Disbursements
14 from this appropriation may be made directly to counties for social and mental
15 hygiene services under s. 46.03 (20) (b) or 46.031 or directly to counties in accordance
16 with federal requirements for the dispersal of federal funds.

17 **SECTION 100.** 20.435 (8) (mb) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act
18 (this act), is amended to read:

19 20.435 (8) (mb) *Income augmentation services receipts.* All moneys that are
20 received under ~~42 USC 670 to 679a,~~ 42 USC 1395 to 1395ddd, and 42 USC 1396 to
21 1396v as the result of income augmentation activities for which the state has
22 contracted ~~and all moneys that are received under 42 USC 1396 to 1396v in~~
23 ~~reimbursement of the cost of providing targeted case management services to~~
24 ~~children whose care is not eligible for reimbursement under 42 USC 670 to 679a,~~ to
25 be used as provided in s. 46.46 and 2007 Wisconsin Act (this act), section 9121

1 (1m). All moneys received under this paragraph in excess of the moneys necessary
2 to support the costs specified in s. 46.46 shall be deposited in the general fund as a
3 nonappropriated receipt.

****NOTE: This is reconciled s. 20.435 (8) (mb). This SECTION has been affected by
drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1221 and -1261.

4 **SECTION 101.** 20.435 (8) (mm) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act
5 (this act), is amended to read:

6 20.435 (8) (mm) *Reimbursements from federal government.* All moneys
7 received from the federal government, other than moneys described under ss. 46.45
8 (2), 46.46, 49.45 (6u), and 49.49, that are intended to reimburse the state for
9 expenditures in previous fiscal years from general purpose revenue appropriations
10 whose purpose includes a requirement to match or secure federal funds and that
11 exceeded in those fiscal years the estimates reflected in the intentions of the
12 legislature and governor, as expressed by them in the budget determinations, and
13 the joint committee on finance, as expressed by the committee in any determinations,
14 and the estimates approved for expenditure by the secretary of administration under
15 s. 16.50 (2), for the purpose of paying federal disallowances, federal sanctions or
16 penalties and the costs of any corrective action affecting the department of health
17 and family services and for the purpose of paying the costs of high-cost out-of-home
18 care placements of Indian children by tribal courts under 2007 Wisconsin Act (this
19 act), section 9121 (1m). Notwithstanding s. 20.001 (3) (c), at the end of each fiscal
20 year, the amount determined by the department of administration under s. 16.54 (12)
21 (d) shall lapse to the general fund.

****NOTE: This is reconciled s. 20.435 (8) (mm). This SECTION has been affected by
drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1221 and -1261.

22 **SECTION 102.** 20.437 (intro.) of the statutes is created to read:

1 **20.437 Children and families, department of.** (intro.) There is
2 appropriated to the department of children and families for the following programs:

 ***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

3 **SECTION 103.** 20.437 (1) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

4 **20.437 (1) (b) Children and family aids payments.** The amounts in the schedule
5 for services for children and families under s. 48.563, for reimbursement to counties
6 having a population of less than 500,000 for the cost of court attached intake services
7 under s. 48.06 (4), for shelter care under ss. 48.58 and 938.22, and for foster care,
8 treatment foster care, and subsidized guardianship care under ss. 48.645 and 49.19
9 (10). Social services disbursements under s. 49.32 (2) (b) may be made from this
10 appropriation. Refunds received relating to payments made under s. 48.47 (20) (b)
11 for the provision of services for which moneys are appropriated under this paragraph
12 shall be returned to this appropriation. Notwithstanding ss. 20.001 (3) (a) and
13 20.002 (1), the department of children and families may transfer funds between
14 fiscal years under this paragraph. The department shall deposit into this
15 appropriation funds it recovers under s. 48.569 (2) (b), from prior fiscal year audit
16 adjustments. Except for amounts authorized to be carried forward under s. 48.565,
17 all funds recovered under s. 48.569 (2) (b) and all funds allocated under s. 48.563 and
18 not spent or encumbered by December 31 of each year shall lapse to the general fund
19 on the succeeding January 1 unless carried forward to the next calendar year by the
20 joint committee on finance.

 ***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

21 **SECTION 104.** 20.437 (1) (gg) of the statutes is created to read:

1 20.437 (1) (gg) *Collection remittances to local units of government.* All moneys
2 received under ss. 49.32 (1) and 49.345 for the purposes of remitting departmental
3 collections under s. 49.32 (1) (g) or 49.345 (8) (g).

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be
reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

4 **SECTION 105.** 20.437 (1) (m) of the statutes is created to read:

5 20.437 (1) (m) *Federal project operations.* All moneys received from the federal
6 government or any of its agencies for the state administration of specific limited term
7 projects to be expended for the purposes specified.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be
reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

8 **SECTION 106.** 20.437 (1) (ma) of the statutes is created to read:

9 20.437 (1) (ma) *Federal project aids.* All moneys received from the federal
10 government or any of its agencies for specific limited term projects to be expended
11 as aids to individuals or organizations for the purposes specified.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be
reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

12 **SECTION 107.** 20.437 (1) (mb) of the statutes is created to read:

13 20.437 (1) (mb) *Federal project local assistance.* All moneys received from the
14 federal government or any of its agencies for specific limited term projects to be
15 expended as local assistance for the purposes specified.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be
reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

16 **SECTION 108.** 20.437 (1) (mc) of the statutes is created to read:

17 20.437 (1) (mc) *Federal block grant operations.* All block grant moneys received
18 from the federal government or any of its agencies for the state administration of
19 federal block grants for the purposes specified.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be
reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

1 **SECTION 109.** 20.437 (1) (md) of the statutes is created to read:

2 20.437 (1) (md) *Federal block grant aids.* All block grant moneys received from
3 the federal government or any of its agencies to be expended as aids to individuals
4 or organizations.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

5 **SECTION 110.** 20.437 (1) (n) of the statutes is created to read:

6 20.437 (1) (n) *Federal program operations.* All moneys received from the
7 federal government or any of its agencies for the state administration of continuing
8 programs to be expended for the purposes specified.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

9 **SECTION 111.** 20.437 (1) (na) of the statutes is created to read:

10 20.437 (1) (na) *Federal program aids.* All moneys received from the federal
11 government or any of its agencies for continuing programs to be expended as aids to
12 individuals or organizations for the purposes specified.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

13 **SECTION 112.** 20.437 (1) (nL) of the statutes is created to read:

14 20.437 (1) (nL) *Federal program local assistance.* All moneys received from the
15 federal government or any of its agencies for continuing programs to be expended as
16 local assistance.

 ****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

17 **SECTION 113.** 20.437 (1) (o) of the statutes is created to read:

18 20.437 (1) (o) *Federal aid; children and family aids.* All federal moneys
19 received in amounts pursuant to allocation plans developed by the department for
20 the provision or purchase of services authorized under par. (b); all federal moneys

1 received as child welfare funds under 42 USC 620 to 626 as limited under s. 48.985;
2 all federal temporary assistance for needy families moneys received under 42 USC
3 601 to 619 that are authorized to be used to purchase or provide social services under
4 42 USC 1397 to 1397e; all unanticipated federal social services block grant funds
5 received under 42 USC 1397 to 1397e, in accordance with s. 48.568; for distribution
6 under s. 48.563. Disbursements from this appropriation may be made directly to
7 counties for services to children and families under s. 49.32 (2) (b) or 49.325 or
8 directly to counties in accordance with federal requirements for the dispersal of
9 federal funds.

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

10 **SECTION 114.** 20.437 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

11 20.437 (2) ECONOMIC SUPPORT. (m) *Federal project operations.* All moneys
12 received from the federal government or any of its agencies for the state
13 administration of specific limited-term projects to be expended for the purposes
14 specified.

15 (na) *Federal program aids.* All moneys received from the federal government
16 or any of its agencies for continuing programs to be expended as local assistance.

17 (nn) *Federal program operations.* All moneys received from the federal
18 government or any of its agencies for the state administration of continuing
19 programs to be expended for the purposes specified.

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

20 **SECTION 115.** 20.437 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

21 20.437 (3) GENERAL ADMINISTRATION. The amounts indicated in this subsection
22 for expenses not immediately identifiable with a specific program. When

1 practicable, the expenditures from the appropriations under this subsection shall be
2 distributed to the various programs.

3 (a) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for executive,
4 management, and policy and budget services and activities.

5 (i) *Gifts and grants.* All moneys received from gifts, grants, donations, and
6 burial trusts for the execution of the department's functions consistent with the
7 purpose of the gift, grant, donation, or trust.

8 (jb) *Fees for administrative services.* All moneys received from fees charged for
9 providing state mailings, special computer services, training programs, printed
10 materials, and publications, for the purpose of providing state mailings, special
11 computer services, training programs, printed materials, and publications.

12 (k) *Administrative and support services.* The amounts in the schedule for
13 administrative and support services and products. All moneys received as payment
14 for administrative and support services and products shall be credited to this
15 appropriation.

16 (kx) *Interagency and intra-agency programs.* All moneys received from other
17 state agencies and all moneys received by the department from the department not
18 credited to the appropriation account under par. (k) for the administration of
19 programs or projects for which received.

20 (ky) *Interagency and intra-agency aids.* All moneys received from other state
21 agencies and all moneys received by the department from the department not
22 credited to the appropriation account under par. (k) for aids to individuals and
23 organizations.

1 (kz) *Interagency and intra-agency local assistance.* All moneys received from
2 other state agencies and all moneys received by the department from the department
3 not credited to the appropriation account under par. (k) for local assistance.

4 (m) *Federal project operations.* All moneys received from the federal
5 government or any of its agencies for the state administration of specific limited term
6 projects to be expended for the purposes specified.

7 (ma) *Federal project aids.* All moneys received from the federal government
8 or any of its agencies for specific limited term projects to be expended as aids to
9 individuals or organizations for the purposes specified.

10 (mb) *Federal project local assistance.* All moneys received from the federal
11 government or any of its agencies for specific limited term projects to be expended
12 as local assistance for the purposes specified.

13 (mc) *Federal block grant operations.* All block grant moneys received from the
14 federal government for the state administration of federal block grants for the
15 purposes specified.

16 (md) *Federal block grant aids.* All block grant moneys received from the federal
17 government or any of its agencies to be expended as aids to individuals or
18 organizations.

19 (me) *Federal block grant local assistance.* All block grant moneys received from
20 the federal government or any of its agencies to be expended on local assistance to
21 counties and municipalities.

22 (mm) *Reimbursements from federal government.* All moneys received from the
23 federal government, other than moneys described under ss. 48.565 (2) and 48.567,
24 that are intended to reimburse the state for expenditures in previous fiscal years
25 from general purpose revenue appropriations whose purpose includes a requirement

1 to match or secure federal funds and that exceeded in those fiscal years the estimates
2 reflected in the intentions of the legislature and governor, as expressed by them in
3 the budget determinations, and the joint committee on finance, as expressed by the
4 committee in any determinations, and the estimates approved for expenditure by the
5 secretary of administration under s. 16.50 (2), for the purpose of paying federal
6 disallowances, federal sanctions or penalties and the costs of any corrective action
7 affecting the department of children and families and for the purpose of paying the
8 costs of high-cost out-of-home care placements of Indian children by tribal courts
9 under 2007 Wisconsin Act (this act), section 9155 (1m). Notwithstanding s. 20.001
10 (3) (c), at the end of each fiscal year, the amount determined by the department of
11 administration under s. 16.54 (12) (d) shall lapse to the general fund.

****NOTE: This is reconciled s. 20.437 (3) (mm). This SECTION has been affected by
drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1221 and -1261.

12 (mp) *Income augmentation services receipts.* All moneys that are received
13 under 42 USC 670 to 679a as the result of income augmentation activities for which
14 the state has contracted and all moneys that are received under 42 USC 1396 to
15 1396v in reimbursement of the cost of providing targeted case management services
16 to children whose care is not eligible for reimbursement under 42 USC 670 to 679a,
17 to be used as provided in s. 48.567 and 2007 Wisconsin Act (this act), section 9155
18 (1m). All moneys received under this paragraph in excess of the moneys necessary
19 to support the costs specified in s. 48.567 and 2007 Wisconsin Act (this act), section
20 9155 (1m), shall be deposited into the general fund as a nonappropriated receipt.

****NOTE: This is reconciled s. 20.437 (3) (mp). This SECTION has been affected by
drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1221 and -1261.

1 (n) *Federal program operations.* All moneys received from the federal
2 government or any of its agencies for the state administration of continuing
3 programs to be expended for the purposes specified.

4 (na) *Federal program aids.* All moneys received from the federal government
5 or any of its agencies for continuing programs to be expended as aids to individuals
6 or organizations for the purposes specified.

7 (nL) *Federal program local assistance.* All moneys received from the federal
8 government or any of its agencies for continuing programs to be expended as local
9 assistance for the purposes specified.

10 (pz) *Indirect cost reimbursements.* All moneys received from the federal
11 government as reimbursement of indirect costs of grants and contracts for the
12 purposes authorized in s. 16.54 (9) (b).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

13 **SECTION 116.** 20.445 (3) (title) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (title).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

14 **SECTION 117.** 20.445 (3) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (a).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

15 **SECTION 118.** 20.445 (3) (b) of the statutes, as created by 2007 Wisconsin Act
16 (this act), is renumbered 20.437 (2) (b).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

****NOTE: This is reconciled s. 20.445 (3) (b). This SECTION has been affected by drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1261 and -1523.

17 **SECTION 119.** 20.445 (3) (cm) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (cm).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

18 **SECTION 120.** 20.445 (3) (cr) of the statutes is renumbered 20.445 (1) (cr).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

1 **SECTION 121.** 20.445 (3) (dz) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (dz).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

2 **SECTION 122.** 20.445 (3) (i) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (i).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

3 **SECTION 123.** 20.445 (3) (ja) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act
4 (this act), is renumbered 20.437 (2) (ja).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

***NOTE: This is reconciled s. 20.445 (3) (ja). This SECTION has been affected by drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1261 and -1589.

5 **SECTION 124.** 20.445 (3) (jb) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (jb).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

6 **SECTION 125.** 20.445 (3) (jL) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (jL).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

7 **SECTION 126.** 20.445 (3) (k) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act
8 (this act), is renumbered 20.437 (2) (k).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

***NOTE: This is reconciled s. 20.445 (3) (k). This SECTION has been affected by drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1261 and -1523.

9 **SECTION 127.** 20.445 (3) (kb) of the statutes, as created by 2007 Wisconsin Act
10 (this act), is renumbered 20.437 (2) (kb).

***NOTE: This is reconciled s. 20.445 (3) (kb). This SECTION has been affected by drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1621 and -1676.

11 **SECTION 128.** 20.445 (3) (kp) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (kp).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

12 **SECTION 129.** 20.445 (3) (kx) of the statutes, as affected by 2007 Wisconsin Act
13 (this act), is renumbered 20.437 (2) (kx).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

***NOTE: This is reconciled s. 20.445 (3) (kx). This SECTION has been affected by drafts with the following LRB numbers: -1261 and -1313.

1 **SECTION 130.** 20.445 (3) (L) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (L).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

2 **SECTION 131.** 20.445 (3) (ma) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (ma).

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

3 **SECTION 132.** 20.445 (3) (mc) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (mc) and
4 amended to read:

5 20.437 (2) (mc) *Federal block grant operations.* The amounts in the schedule,
6 less the amounts withheld under s. 49.143 (3), for the purposes of operating and
7 administering the block grant programs for which the block grant moneys are
8 received and transferring moneys to the appropriation account under ~~s. 20.435 (3)~~
9 sub. (1) (kx). All block grant moneys received for these purposes from the federal
10 government or any of its agencies for the state administration of federal block grants
11 shall be credited to this appropriation account.

***NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

12 **SECTION 133.** 20.445 (3) (md) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (md) and
13 amended to read:

14 20.437 (2) (md) *Federal block grant aids.* The amounts in the schedule, less
15 the amounts withheld under s. 49.143 (3), for aids to individuals or organizations and
16 to be transferred to the appropriation accounts under ~~ss. 20.435 (3)~~ sub. (1) (kc), (kd),
17 and (kx), and ss. 20.435 (4) (kz), (6) (kx), (7) (ky), and (8) (kx) and 20.835 (2) (kf). All
18 block grant moneys received for these purposes from the federal government or any
19 of its agencies and all moneys recovered under s. 49.143 (3) shall be credited to this

1 appropriation account. The department may credit to this appropriation account the
2 amount of any returned check, or payment in other form, that is subject to
3 expenditure in the same contract period in which the original payment attempt was
4 made, regardless of the fiscal year in which the original payment attempt was made.

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

5 **SECTION 134.** 20.445 (3) (me) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (me).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

6 **SECTION 135.** 20.445 (3) (mm) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (mm)
7 and amended to read:

8 20.437 (2) (mm) *Reimbursements from federal government.* All moneys
9 received from the federal government that are intended to reimburse the state for
10 expenditures in previous fiscal years from general purpose revenue appropriations
11 whose purpose includes a requirement to match or secure federal funds and that
12 exceeded in those fiscal years the estimates reflected in the intentions of the
13 legislature and governor, as expressed by them in the budget determinations, and
14 the joint committee on finance, as expressed by the committee in any determinations,
15 and the estimates approved for expenditure by the secretary of administration under
16 s. 16.50 (2), for the purpose of paying federal disallowances, federal sanctions or
17 penalties and the costs of any corrective action affecting the department of ~~workforce~~
18 development children and families. Notwithstanding s. 20.001 (3) (c), at the end of
19 each fiscal year, the amount determined by the department of administration under
20 s. 16.54 (12) (d) shall lapse to the general fund.

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

21 **SECTION 136.** 20.445 (3) (n) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (n).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

1 **SECTION 137.** 20.445 (3) (na) of the statutes is renumbered 20.445 (1) (om).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

2 **SECTION 138.** 20.445 (3) (nL) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (nL).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

3 **SECTION 139.** 20.445 (3) (pv) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (pv) and
4 amended to read:

5 20.437 (2) (pv) *Electronic benefits transfer.* All moneys received from the
6 federal government for the electronic transfer of benefits administered by the
7 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families, to be expended for the
8 purposes specified. Estimated disbursements under this paragraph shall not be
9 included in the schedule under s. 20.005.

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

10 **SECTION 140.** 20.445 (3) (pz) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (pz).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

11 **SECTION 141.** 20.445 (3) (q) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (q).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

12 **SECTION 142.** 20.445 (3) (qm) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (qm).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

13 **SECTION 143.** 20.445 (3) (r) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (r) and
14 amended to read:

15 20.437 (2) (r) *Support receipt and disbursement program; payments.* From the
16 support collections trust fund, except as provided in par. (qm), all moneys received
17 under s. 49.854, except for moneys received under s. 49.854 (11) (b), all moneys

1 received under ss. 767.57 and 767.75 for child or family support, maintenance,
2 spousal support, health care expenses, or birth expenses, all other moneys received
3 under judgments or orders in actions affecting the family, as defined in s. 767.001 (1),
4 and all moneys received under s. 49.855 (4) from the department of revenue or the
5 department of administration that were withheld by the department of revenue or
6 the internal revenue service for delinquent child support, family support, or
7 maintenance or outstanding court-ordered amounts for past support, medical
8 expenses, or birth expenses, for disbursement to the persons for whom the payments
9 are awarded, for returning seized funds under s. 49.854 (5) (f), and, if assigned under
10 s. ~~46.261~~, 48.57 (3m) (b) 2. or (3n) (b) 2., 48.645 (3), 49.145 (2) (s), 49.19 (4) (h) 1. b.,
11 or 49.775 (2) (bm), for transfer to the appropriation account under par. (k). Estimated
12 disbursements under this paragraph shall not be included in the schedule under s.
13 20.005.

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

14 **SECTION 144.** 20.445 (3) (s) of the statutes is renumbered 20.437 (2) (s).

****NOTE: This SECTION involves a change in an appropriation that must be reflected in the revised schedule in s. 20.005, stats.

15 **SECTION 145.** 20.505 (4) (kp) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 20.505 (4) (kp) *Hearings and appeals fees.* The amounts in the schedule for
17 hearings and appeals services to the department of health and family services under
18 s. 227.43 (1) (bu), the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
19 under s. 227.43 (1) (by), and to all agencies under s. 227.43 (1m). All moneys received
20 from the fees charged under s. 227.43 (3) (c), (d), and (e) shall be credited to this
21 appropriation account.

22 **SECTION 146.** 20.835 (2) (kf) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 20.835 (2) (kf) *Earned income tax credit; temporary assistance for needy*
2 *families.* The amounts in the schedule to be used to pay, to the extent permitted
3 under federal law, the claims approved under s. 71.07 (9e). All moneys transferred
4 from the appropriation account under s. ~~20.445 (3)~~ 20.437 (2) (md) shall be credited
5 to this appropriation account.

6 **SECTION 147.** 20.907 (5) (e) 6. of the statutes is amended to read:

7 20.907 (5) (e) 6. Advances from ~~child caring institutions~~ residential care
8 centers for children and youth and counties and moneys receivable from counties
9 under s. ~~46.037~~ 49.343.

10 **SECTION 148.** 20.921 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 20.921 (2) (a) Whenever it becomes necessary in pursuance of any federal or
12 state law or court-ordered assignment of income under s. 46.10 (14) (e), 49.345 (14)
13 (e), 301.12 (14) (e), 767.225 (1) (L), 767.513 (3), or 767.75 to make deductions from
14 the salaries of state officers or employees or employees of the University of Wisconsin
15 Hospitals and Clinics Authority, the state agency or authority by which the officers
16 or employees are employed is responsible for making ~~such~~ those deductions and
17 paying over the total ~~thereof~~ of those deductions for the purposes provided by the
18 laws or orders under which they were made.

19 **SECTION 149.** 20.923 (4) (f) 2d. of the statutes is created to read:

20 20.923 (4) (f) 2d. Children and families, department of: secretary.

21 **SECTION 150.** 20.923 (6) (bd) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 20.923 (6) (bd) ~~Health and family services~~ Children and families, department
23 of: director of the office of urban development.

24 **SECTION 151.** 20.9275 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 20.9275 (2) (intro.) No state agency or local governmental unit may authorize
2 payment of funds of this state, of any local governmental unit or, subject to sub. (3m),
3 of federal funds passing through the state treasury as a grant, subsidy or other
4 funding that wholly or partially or directly or indirectly involves pregnancy
5 programs, projects or services, that is a grant, subsidy or other funding under s.
6 ~~46.99, 46.995, 48.487, 48.545,~~ 253.05, 253.07, 253.08, or 253.085 or 42 USC 701 to
7 710, if any of the following applies:

8 **SECTION 152.** 25.68 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 25.68 (1) All moneys received by the department of ~~workforce development~~
10 children and families under s. 49.854, except for moneys received under s. 49.854 (11)
11 (b).

12 **SECTION 153.** 25.68 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 25.68 (3) All moneys not specified under sub. (2) that are received under a
14 judgment or order in an action affecting the family, as defined in s. 767.001 (1), by
15 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or its designee.

16 **SECTION 154.** 29.024 (2g) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 29.024 (2g) (am) *Social security numbers exceptions.* If an applicant who is an
18 individual does not have a social security number, the applicant, as a condition of
19 applying for, or applying to renew, an approval specified in par. (a) 1. to 3., shall
20 submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the department
21 that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of the statement
22 shall be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
23 families. An approval issued by the department of natural resources in reliance on
24 a false statement submitted by an applicant under this paragraph is invalid.

25 **SECTION 155.** 29.024 (2g) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 29.024 (2g) (c) *Disclosure of social security numbers.* The department of
2 natural resources may not disclose any social security numbers received under par.
3 (a) to any person except to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
4 families for the sole purpose of administering s. 49.22.

5 **SECTION 156.** 29.024 (2g) (d) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

6 29.024 (2g) (d) 1. As provided in the memorandum of understanding required
7 under s. 49.857 (2), the department shall deny an application to issue or renew,
8 suspend if already issued or otherwise withhold or restrict an approval specified in
9 par. (a) 1. to 3. if the applicant for or the holder of the approval is delinquent in
10 making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
11 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
12 former spouse or if the applicant or holder fails to comply with a subpoena or warrant
13 issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county
14 child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and relating to paternity or child support
15 proceedings.

16 **SECTION 157.** 29.024 (2r) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 29.024 (2r) (am) *Social security and identification numbers exceptions.* If an
18 applicant who is an individual does not have a social security number, the applicant,
19 as a condition of applying for, or applying to renew, any of the approvals specified in
20 par. (a) 1. to 16., shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or
21 affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social security
22 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
23 ~~workforce development~~ children and families. An approval issued by the department
24 of natural resources in reliance on a false statement submitted by an applicant under
25 this paragraph is invalid.

1 **SECTION 158.** 29.229 (5m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 29.229 (5m) (a) The band is requested to enter into a memorandum of
3 understanding with the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
4 under s. 49.857.

5 **SECTION 159.** 29.229 (5m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 29.229 (5m) (b) The band is requested to enact tribal laws or ordinances that
7 require each person who has a social security number, as a condition of being issued
8 an approval under this section, to provide to the band his or her social security
9 number, tribal laws or ordinances that require each person who does not have a social
10 security number, as a condition of being issued an approval under this section, to
11 provide to the band a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation on a
12 form prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
13 that the person does not have a social security number, and tribal laws or ordinances
14 that prohibit the disclosure of that number by the band to any other person except
15 to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the purpose
16 of administering s. 49.22.

17 **SECTION 160.** 29.229 (5m) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 29.229 (5m) (c) The band is requested to enact tribal laws or ordinances that
19 deny an application to issue or renew, suspend if already issued or otherwise
20 withhold or restrict an approval issued under this section if the applicant for or the
21 holder of the approval fails to provide the information required under tribal laws or
22 ordinances enacted under par. (b) or fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a
23 subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children
24 and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to
25 paternity or child support proceedings or if the department of ~~workforce~~

1 ~~development~~ children and families certifies that the applicant for or the holder of the
2 approval has failed to pay court-ordered payments of child or family support,
3 maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the
4 support of a child or former spouse. The band is also requested to enact tribal laws
5 or ordinances that invalidate an approval issued under this subsection if issued in
6 reliance upon a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation under tribal
7 laws or ordinances enacted under par. (b) that is false.

8 **SECTION 161.** 35.86 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 35.86 (1) The director of the historical society may procure the exchange of
10 public documents produced by federal, state, county, local, and other agencies as may
11 be desirable to maintain or enlarge its historical, literary, and statistical collections,
12 and may make such distributions of public documents, with or without exchange, as
13 may accord with interstate or international comity. The state law librarian shall
14 procure so many of such exchanges as the state law librarian is authorized by law
15 to make, and the department of health and family services, department of children
16 and families, commission of banking, department of public instruction, legislative
17 reference bureau, and the legislative council staff, may procure by exchange such
18 documents from other states and countries as may be needed for use in their
19 respective offices. Any other state agency wishing to initiate a formal exchange
20 program in accordance with this section may do so by submitting a formal application
21 to the department and by otherwise complying with this section.

22 **SECTION 162.** 38.04 (21) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 38.04 (21) (intro.) PUPILS ATTENDING TECHNICAL COLLEGES; BOARD REPORT.
24 Annually by the 3rd Monday in February the board shall submit a report to the
25 department of administration, department of children and families, department of

1 public instruction, and department of workforce development, and to the legislature
2 under s. 13.172 (2). The report shall specify all of the following by school district:

3 **SECTION 163.** 45.20 (2) (d) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 45.20 (2) (d) 2. b. A statement that the veteran is not delinquent in child
5 support or maintenance payments and does not owe past support, medical expenses
6 or birth expenses, signed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
7 families or its designee within 7 working days before the date of the application.

8 **SECTION 164.** 45.33 (2) (b) 1. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

9 45.33 (2) (b) 1. b. A statement that the person is not delinquent in child support
10 or maintenance payments and does not owe past support, medical expenses, or birth
11 expenses, signed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
12 or its designee within 7 working days before the date of the application.

13 **SECTION 165.** 45.42 (6) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 45.42 (6) (b) Provides to the department a statement that the applicant is not
15 delinquent in child support or maintenance payments and does not owe past support,
16 medical expenses, or birth expenses, signed by the department of ~~workforce~~
17 ~~development~~ children and families or its designee within 7 working days before the
18 date of the application.

19 **SECTION 166.** 46.001 of the statutes is amended to read:

20 **46.001 Purposes of chapter.** The purposes of this chapter are to conserve
21 human resources in Wisconsin; ~~to provide a just and humane program of services to~~
22 ~~children and unborn children in need of protection or services, nonmarital children~~
23 ~~and the expectant mothers of those unborn children;~~ to prevent dependency, mental
24 illness, developmental disability, mental infirmity, and other forms of social
25 maladjustment by a continuous attack on causes; to provide effective aid and services

1 to all persons in need thereof of that aid and those services and to assist those persons
2 to achieve or regain self-dependence at the earliest possible date; to avoid
3 duplication and waste of effort and money on the part of public and private agencies;
4 and to coordinate and integrate a social welfare program.

5 **SECTION 167.** 46.011 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 **46.011 Definitions.** (intro.) In chs. 46, 48, 50, 51, 54, 55, and 58:

7 **SECTION 168.** 46.014 (4) of the statutes is renumbered 49.265 (6) and amended
8 to read:

9 49.265 (6) REPORTS. At least annually, the secretary shall submit a report to
10 the chief clerk of each house of the legislature, for distribution to the appropriate
11 standing committees under s. 13.172 (3), concerning activities of community action
12 agencies under ~~s. 46.30~~ this section and their effectiveness in promoting social and
13 economic opportunities for poor persons.

14 **SECTION 169.** 46.016 of the statutes is amended to read:

15 **46.016 Cooperation with federal government.** The department may
16 cooperate with the federal government in carrying out federal acts concerning public
17 assistance, social security, ~~child welfare and youth services~~, mental hygiene, services
18 for the blind, and in other matters of mutual concern pertaining to public welfare.

19 **SECTION 170.** 46.02 of the statutes is amended to read:

20 **46.02 Agency powers and duties.** Any institution which that is subject to
21 chs. 46, 48 ~~49~~ to 51, 55, and 58 and to regulation under ch. 150 shall, in cases of
22 conflict between chs. 46, 48 ~~49~~ to 51, 55, and 58 and ch. 150, be governed by ch. 150.
23 The department shall promulgate rules and establish procedures for resolving any
24 such ~~controversy~~ a conflict.

25 **SECTION 171.** 46.023 of the statutes is renumbered 48.562.